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Twelve months ended June 30 1993 1992 1991

INCOME DATA (in thousands, except per share data)

Oil'andipaesales. i vl nn R e $ 11,602 $ 10,520 $ 4334
Service operations and other ..........eceeriiinneesrisninenes 6,406 8,198 2,109
3 o i e T o e e B e e D B e e 18,008 18,718 6,443
PO Ot O R PERIRES - iivs s vssivess uiessstansisssissaniassesivas 2,590 2,003 760
Oil and gas property DD&A..........ccoovericiruereneresusesnes 4,184 2,910 1,585
S EIVICE DPRIREIGHN Siisisvsvenic sisinssvissbosiaseab ovsvaienssesissinin 3,653 4,113 606
03 DIy A ST [ SRS RS 557 974 351
General and administrative, NEL.....ccovvveiiivieeesinreenins 3,920 3,414 2,119
|Eriemen e ke ey e oo ol SO ORI 0 100 R G SO 2,282 2977 317
Provision for legal and other settlements ........c.ccccec.. 1,286 = =
iorali oot NESRE | s | SRR N e 18,472 15,991 5,738
Income (loss) before income tax ......ccovveveecverrereenne (464) 2,727 705
Income tax expense (benefit) . iciiianisivesmiisions (99) 1,337 243
N et I O LOSE) s oo tverserss srasrsssrasrassressassnarssinresoses bon (365) 1,390 462
Weighted average shares outstanding.........c..cccounee. 3,728 3,101 3,101
PROPERTY DATA ($ in thousands)
Ol teseves (MBI s oot e e e e e 9,622 11,147 3,212
(a5 Teseryes lIIVINIEE) .. .o oo smsnesmenrssinpnesbensiansassesnss 79,763 68,618 17,334
Equivalent thousand batrels .........civuinisniiiiiia 22,915 22,583 6,101
Equivalent million cubic feet ....co.oevvereevecrererrirnenne 137,495 135,500 36,606
Discounted future net revenues—standardized
messire katte e L $119,744 $125,752 $ 22,054
O productton; INIBBISY ......cormsevsrssmssnesreorsanasmmoressh 276 374 163
Gas production (MMcf) ......cccociviriarinincnriensanaseennns 2,677 1,252 646
Production in equivalent million cubic feet .............. 4,333 3,496 1,624
Average oil price (SIBBI) ... iiiiisinnisniiaiin $ 20.20 $ 21.85 $ 20.15
Average gas price ($/Mcf) ......ocervereererructrennruenensuenens $ 225 $ 1.88 $1 1.59
Rieservelfeiindes o il o i) L Rl Lt 31.7 38.8 225
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C/Jesapea/ee Energy Comomtzon

HO WE ARE
Chcsapcake Energy Corporation, head-
quartered in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,

is an independent oil and natural gas
- “exploration and production company which became
.a publicly owned company in February 1993. It is
traded on the NASDAQ National Market Systcm

under the symbol CSPK.

HAT WE DO
Chesapeake utilizes its advanced
-~ technological expertise in the drilling of
vertical and horizontal wells to exploit

® ' Corporate

areas of proven hydrocarbon production. It teams i
- s o 4 Y =g : eadquarters -
- with major oil companies and well-capitalized o
independents to develop its existing imf:cr.ltqry of (;;T;:ng Ar &
more than 150 proved and probable drilling loca-

A Field Ofﬁces

tions. The company has a‘domestic geographic focus
with activities concentrated in: southem Texas and

southern Oklahorna

HAT’S AHEAD | )
- Chesapeake’s shareholders should

7 HAT WE'VE ACCOMPLISHED

During the past four years,
Chesapeake has: * benefit from:
w Increased annual production over 2600%; o . m Areserveand prbducrion mix of approximately 60%
R _ ~ natural gas and expected to increase to 70~ 75% over :hc
w Increased total assets over 900%; . _ next several years;
» Increased total revenue over 2700%; s A pkojectcd drilling schedulc which shouic( signiﬁ»

- ~ -cantly increase company production and revenues; -

w Increased total reserves over 1100%. ;

<L " Advanccd tcchmcal expertise, pamallariy in thc'
apphmtmn of horizontal dnlhng t.cchnology' '

. Managcmcnt and directors own 55% of common -
shares outstanding, thereby aligning the interests of
- management and shareholders. :



.Léttf_,’r- £ S/mreboldefs

Y iscal 1993 wasa year of major change for
Chesapeake Energy Corporation as we

¥ made the transition from private to public
~ ownership. This transition has set the stage

for future earnings and asset growth.

The success of Chesapeake’s initial public offering
(IPO) in February 1993 was an important step in
implementing our plan for increased profitability
and growth for the company. Chesapeake received
net proceeds of approximately $25.2 million from
the public offering of 2.3 million shares of the

. company’s common stock. This offering allowed the

company to significantly.reduce long-term debt and -
improve working capital.

CORPORATE STRATEGY

Chesapeake’s business strategy is based on our view -

that the ownership and development of domestic

- energy reserves; particularly natural gas, will create
_substantial benefits to our shareholders. To
maximize those bénefits, we have concentrated our
cﬂ"orts in' three areas.

_ First, we have acquired more than 100,000 gross
acres of prospective undeveloped leasehold in our
primary operating areas. With our projected drilling
schedule of 40-50 wells per year, this undeveloped
leasehold should provide the company with three to

- five years of low-risk drilling opportunities.

Second, Chesapeake continues to be one of the
leaders'in the application of advanced horizontal

 drilling techniques. We are now drilling opposing
and stacked laterals from a single vertical wellbore.
Technical advances such as these have helped lower
horizontal drilling costs by approxlmately 25% -
during the past year. This trend should continue as
we incorporate more innovations in this rapld[y

expanding area of high technology.

Third, the alltances we have created with larger
energy companiés, such as Amerada Hess, Mobil,
Texaco and Union Pacific Resources Company,
demonstrate the quality of Chesapeake’s asset base
and the.innovative spirit of management. For

" example, Chesapeake recently announced joint

* development and financing agreements with Union -

Pacific in the Giddings Field which could lead to the -

 risk-free development of as much as 18 to 30 billion
cubic feet ofgas cquwalent (BCFE), net to.the

company's interest.

-Additionally, in early 1994.Chesépeake plans to

begin operations on a horizontal drilling project in
southern Oklahoma with Texaco and Mobil as our
partners. If successful, the venture could significantly
increase the company’s |nvcntory of low-risk
developmental opportunities.

CHESAPEAKE’S STRENGTH

Since inception, Chesapeake’s strength has been the
acquisition and development of high quality:
undeveloped properties. In this regard, we have
concentrated our efforts in two primary operating
areas: the Giddings Field in southern Texas and the
Golden Trend Field in southern Oklahoma.

Our use of advanced seismic; drilling, and
completlon tech nologles in these fields has enabled -
Chesapeake to increase its annual production by

" more than 2600% during the past four years. We
* believe our technical capabilities and leasehold

inventory will continue to provide substantial
growth opportunities in the next several years.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Although constrained -

- by limited capital, we
nevertheless enjoyed
operational success in

fiscal 1993. During
the year, we drilled 37
wells, 34 of which
were commercially
productive. The

“company’s production
for the year increased
by 24% t0 4.3 BCFE

- ‘and total company

reserves also grcw to an all-time high of 137.5

BCFE. Additionally, revenues from oil and gas sales

i W:ﬂﬂﬁ

i 90'919293

increased 10% despite an 11% decrease in average :

oil and gas prices.

‘Chesapeake’s finding costs for fiscal 1993 were

approximately-$0.85 per thousand cubic feet of gas

. equivalent (MCFE) in our primary operating areas
and $1.07 per MCFE overall. These attractive

finding costs and attractive development
opportunities enabled the company to reinvest its

. cash flow in finding additional reserves. With a



capital budgét for new wells of only $7.4 million, we .

were still able to replace.176% of our producuon in

1993.

This was achieved even though the increased drilling

activity that resulted from our IPO did not

materially affect our operating results in fiscal 1993. .

However, we are now seeing the benefits of
increased dnlhng activity. In the first quarter of
fiscal 1994, net production was up 56% compared
-to the first fiscal quarter of 1993. For all of fiscal
1994, we anticipate increasing production volumes
by more than 50% over the previous year. This
~ trend should provide excellent earnings and cash
~ flow increases, creating strong momentum for per
share value growth. : '

FINANCIAL RESULTS .
Despltc reporting a loss of $365,000 in fiscal 1993,

we believe the strength of our management team
and our strategy of growth through drilling will
translate into improved ﬁnanc:al results in fiscal

1994.

Toa largé degree, the company’s earnings decline in -

1993 was the result of a special charge of $1.3
- million as a provision for litigition expense’and legal
settlements. Although distasteful, the settlements
have now allowed management to focus its efforts
on en'hanc_ing shareholder value through the
development of the company’s large reserve base.

During the past four -
fiscal years, we have.
increased our
revenues from $0.6
million’to $18.0
million, increased our
- -annual production
from 0.2 BCFE to
4.3 BCFE, increased
total assets from $7.5
millionto $77.8

920 919293

" Y1 9293

“our proved reserve

- base from 10.9 BCFE to 137.5 BCFE. These four-

year growth rates are among the highest in the

- independent energy sector. As our capital
requiréments are met, we expect impressive rates of
growth to continue.

* million, and enlarged

OUTLOOK FOR OUR FUTURE -

Some of our peers are spreading their drilling

budgets across both domestic and international

drilling projects. We believe this is an inappropriate -
strategy for a medium-sized independent producer.
Therefore, Chesapeake has focused virtually all of its
fiscal 1994 capital budget on developmental drilling

- in the Giddings and Golden Trend Fields, two of
~ the most active fields in the nation and areas where

we have hiszoricaliy’ performed wc_ll:

Our goals for 1994 and beyond remain ambitious.
We believe the rest of the decade will be rewarding
for well-managed, gas-leveraged'companies that have
demonstrated the capability to grow through -
c]nllmg We will continue to concentrate on areas
where we have competitive advantages such as the."

. Giddings and Golden Trend Fields. We intend to

increase our asset base and financial strength

_ thrqugh continued-acquisition and development of -

strategic leasehold blocks where we can utilize our

_ geological and engineering strengths to dcher

actractive financial results.

~ We emphasize to all of our current and prospective

shareholders that we are dedicated to creating

-consistent and sustained growth in shareholder

vatue. With management owning more than 50% of
the outstanding common shares, the financial
interests of management and shareholders are truly
aligned. -

- We are gratcful to our dedicated cmployees for their

hard work and strong performance during a
challenging year. We also wish to thank our
directors for their leadership and counsel and our
shareholders for their continued confidence. We
encourage you to share our enrhusiasm for
Chesapeake'’s future.

Aubrcy K. McCIendon
Chairman and C}mf Executive Oﬁcer

Torh L. Ward
President and Chief Operating Officer



Prz'mary Operating Areas

uring the past two years, Chesapeake
~ has focused its capital expenditures in
the Giddings Field of southern Texas
. and the Golden Trend Field of southern
Oklahoma. These areas continue to be the emphasis
of Chesapeake’s development strategy, In these
fields, the company has developed a proprietary land
and geological base and can add value by utilizing its
expertise in horizontal drilling and seismic
interpretation. Additionally, by attracting major
companies to participate in Chesapeake’s projects,
the company can reduce its financial risk and build -
- important long-term relationships with larger:
- companies that have greater land and financial
resources. '

. GIDDINGS FIELD

Chesapeake’s most important assets are located in
the Giddings Field of southern Texas, one of the
most active oil and gas fields in the nation. Since
1991, Chesapeake, Union Pacific and others have
drilled more than 600 horizontal wells in Giddings
‘with a total capital investmerit of approximately
$800 million.

The primary producing zone in this field is the

* Austin Chalk - a formation that has been maligned
during the last few years as a result of drilling

“disappointments 200 miles away in the Pearsall .
Field. In Giddings, however, the Austin Chalk has
proven to be a prolific producer. The results speak
for themselves. During the fourth fiscal quarter of -
1993 and the first fiscal quarter of 1994, the

company operated or participated in 12 horizontal
Austin Chalk wells in Giddings. Ten of these wells
registered sustained flow rates for the first thirty days
of production in excess of five million cubic feet of
gas equivalent per day. All of these wells are-expected
to pay out within three years and seven of them_
should pay out within 180 days from first ‘
production. Chesapeake knows of no other onshore
field in the nation where economic returns from
drilling are better than in Giddings.

There are three major reasons for the success of the

Austin Chalk play in Giddings. First, the geological
setting of the field has created more intense
fracturing than in other areas of Chalk production.
Second, continued technical advancements in
horizontal drilling have significantly lowered finding
costs. Third, operators are cooperating on wellbore
spacing patterns to minimize competitive drainage
problems. !

UNION PACIFIC AGREEMENT -

In October 1993, Chesapeake and Union Pacific
reached an agreement to jointly develop a 20,000
acre block in the Giddings Field. This agreement
provides Chesapeake with the option of limited
recourse financing for Chesapeake’s anticipated $15-,
20 million share of development costs. If
Chesapeake elects the financing option, Union
Pacific will earn an 8% interest rate on the amounts
financed and 15% of Chesapeake’s production after
project payout.

Chesapeake believes a financing arrangement of this
type is unprecedented in the industry. Additionally,.
Union Pacific’s confidence in project payout is an
important validation of Chesapeake’s commitment

to the Giddings Field.



HORIZON TAL TE CHNOLOGY
DEVELOPMENTS

- In the last two years, the technology enabling
Chesapeake and others to drill profitable horizontal

~ wells in the Giddings Field has advanced rapidly in
three major areas. First, Chesapeake’s geologists now
are using enhanced seismic technology to more
accurately predict the-existence and location of
hydrocarbon-bearing fractures, or "sweet spots”,
within the Austin Chalk. This ability significantly
decreases the risk of drilling uneconomic wells.

Second, :idv;inccmems in drilling technology such as’

MWD ("measurement-while-drilling") tools, which
provide a continuous analysis of the drillbit’s
location when drilling horizontally, assist engineers
. in guiding the drillbit into the anticipated sweet
spots. Improvements in downhole motor and drillbit
technology have enabled the rate of penetration to
double during the past two years. These advances
have resulted in lower finding costs.

Third, Chesapeake has recently de_veléped the
expertise to drill opposing laterals (horizontal

wellbores drilled in opposite directions) and stacked

laterals (one horizontal wellbore in one interval with
a second lateral drilled in the same direction in a :
lower interval). The opposing lateral and stacked
lateral wells can double the amount of reserves.
recovered with only a 25 to 50 percent increase in
total well costs. Chesapeake believes continued
advancements in drilling technology could enable
the company to lower its finding costs by another
10-20% during the next few years.

GOLDEN TREND -

Chesapeake's second primary operating area is the

‘Golden Trend Field of southern Oklahoma. It is one

of the most active fields in the Mid-Continent
region of the nation. During the last ten years,
Chesapeake, Amerada Hess, Anadarko, Mobil,

' Phillips, OXY and others have drilled more than 400

wells in the Golden Trend with a total capital
investment of approximately $350 million.

‘Wells in the Golden Trend Field have many

- attractive characteristics, including reserves that are

long-lived, reserves weighted 85% towards liquids-
rich natural gas, predictable and controllable drilling

* Costs, and the probability of multiple zone

completions. Chesapeake has developed a significant
geological and engineering niche in the Golden
Trend that has enabled it to have three-year finding
costs of $0.85 per MCFE, and production costs,
including severance taxes, of $0.39 per MCFE.

Moreover, thé company’s land position in the
Golden Trend is strong. With approximately 150
drilling locations in inventory, Chesapeake
anticipates drilling 20-25 wells per year in the
Golden Trend. '

a5 LR




NEW AREAS
NAVASOTA RIVER :

In early 1993, Chesapeake 'a..cquired.approximate[y '
130,000 gross acres of leasehold in the Navasota River
area of the Giddings Field. The company believes

* the results from its drilling activities on this block

will be as attractive as those from its othcr wells in
Giddings.

As a result of the Union Pacific financing discussed

above, Chesapeake intends to accelerate its drilling
in the Navasota River area during fiscal 1994.
- Ultimately, the company believes as many as 60

 horizontal wells can be drilled-in the Navasota River

area. Success with this project would significantly-
enhance the company’s reserves, ‘earnings, and cash ",
flow.

Gfddings——-
Navasota River

»'SHOLEMALECHEM

In September 1993, Chesapeake reachcd agreemem:s
with Texaco and Mobil to initiate a horizontal .

- drilling project in the Sholem Alechem portion of
) southern Oklahoma’s giant Sho-Vel-Tum Field.

This field has produced more than one billion
barrels of oil and one trillion cubic feet of natural ga.s

since its discovery more than 80 years ago.

Chesapeake believes the application of horizontal

drilling technology in this field could resulc in a

significant increase in the recovery of rcmammg
reserves from the field.

_ The initial phase of thls pro;ect 1nvolves drilling two

horizontal wells in the Sycamore formation in early

- 1994. If the initial two wells are successful, the
© . parties can elect to expand. the initial agreements to a

secondary phase in which as many as 100 horizontal
wells could be drilled.

" The Sholem Alechem agreerﬁents are an important
- example of Chesapeake’s ability to identify new areas

where the application of its technical capabilities can
result in added value. The agreements also reflect

~ continuing recognition among major-companies of
- Chesapeake’s operating expertise and efficiency. As

the company further develops its relationships with

* these and other land-rich major companies,

additional opportunities for creating future growth

are anticipated.
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 Corporate Information

STOCK DATA

: 1993 Price Range
Fiscal Year Ended Juné 30,1993 High - Tew
Third Quarter (commencing February 4, 1993) 12 1/4 10 1/2
Fourth Quarter . ; ] 12 87/8
COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDS

Chesapeake Energy Corporation common stock
began trading February 4, 1993, and is listed on

~ the NASDAQ National Market System under the

symbol CSPK. At September 27, 1993, there were
approximately 40 shareholders of record and 450
beneficial owners of the common stock.

The company’s policy is to retain its earnings to

- support the growth of the company. Chesapeake’s

Board of Directors has not authorized the payment
of cash dividends on its common stock.

CORPORATE OFFICES

6104 North Western

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73118
(405) 848-8000

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Price Waterhouse ) S

“15 North Robinson, Suite 400

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102

FORM 10-K .
Stockholders may obtain, without charge, a copy of
Chiesapeake Energy Corporations’s Form 10-K
report as filed with the Securites and Exchange
Commission. For copies or answers to questions

“about the company, you are invited to contact the
Investor Relations department at the address of the
corporate offices above.

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Liberty Bank & Trust Company of
Oklahoma City, N.A.

- 100 North Broadway Avenue ‘

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102
(405) 231-6764

Communication concerning the transfer of shares, lost
certificates, duplicate mailings or change of address
notifications should be directed to the transfer agent.

All inteior pages printed on 100% postconsumer recycled papet. @ :
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SECTION II
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The fo].lomng table sets forth selected consolidated financial dara of the Company for each of the four
fiscal years ended June 30, 1993. The data is derived from the financial statements of the Company which have
been audited by Price Waterhouse, independent accountants. The data set forth in this table should be read °
© in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 7

; Year Ended June 30,

1990 1991 1992 1993
(5 in thousands, mepr;aef; share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues: 4 . -

Oil and gas sales .......: o e e o Bty $ 389 § 4334 $10,520 $11,602
Oil and gas service operations. ... ............ 197 1,961 7,656 D820
Interest and other . ........... Al o 38 . 148 .. 542 . 880

el e e e o e e s £ 624 6,443 18,718 - . 18,008

Costs and expenses:: - : j
Production expenses and taxes . ....... Toie e ws 43 760 2,003 2,590
Oil and gas service operations . .. .......... ooy 136 606 4,113 3:653¢

~ Depreciation, depletion and amortization ' :

: of oil and gas properties . .. ............... | 85+ 1,585 2910 - 4,184
Depreciation and amortization of other assets. . .. 126 5= © 974 557
General and administrative, net ... .. ..., ... . 759 2,119 3414 3,920
Provision for legal and other settlements ....... - - — 1,286

. Interest and other ........ S I re e b A 12 317 2,577 2,282
Total Costs ANd eXPENSEs .« s iy voin vints siaiis s 1,161 5 5738 15,991 18,472
" ‘Income (loss) before income taxes.. .\.......... (B3 705 22T (464)

Income tax expense (benefit) . ... : - 243 1,337 99

Netincome (10SS) . . ................... AL (8 537 $8 462 $ 1390 - (§__365)

Dividends on preferred stock . .. ... .. L e S Sy DR St e TG DE T

. Net income (loss) per common share .. .. .. Mg [ ) $. IS5 $.-. 45 & 200
Cash Flow Data: : . : : !

Cash provided by {used in) operating activities .. .. = $2,081 .  $14,821 $ 9318 (% 1,499

Cash used in investing activities . ... ............ 1,006 . 21,928 24,755 15,142

Cash provided by financing activities, . . .. . .... A 133 9,247 12,779 20,802

Balance Sheet Data: (at end of period) ‘ g ;

Working capital (deficle) ). i s mir i Wik o - 7 ($1,351)  (815,661) - ($24,629) (8$11,891)

TOtal assBts Aty e T e o Ttk TR s 7492 44,462 60,683 77,846

Long-term debt, net of current maturities . . . ... ... : 289 8,570 21,742, 13,190

Stockholders' equity (deficit) .................. " (655) (1,559) 132, 31,432




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview _

General In February 1993, the Company completed an initial publlc offenng of 2,300,000 shares of its
Common Stock. The offering allowed the Company to improve its financial condition through payment of its
obligation to TCW and facilitated its lower cost, long-term lending arrangement with its principal secured

lender, Union Bank. The offering also enabled the Company to increase the rate of development of its
substantial undeveloped oil and gas reserve base.

During fiscal 1993, the Company participated in 37 gross wells (7.4 net), of which 32 were operated by
the Company. In its primary development areas, the Giddings and Golden Trend Fields, the Company's finding
costs were approximately $.85 per Mcfe, and approximately $1.07 per Mcfe for all areas in 1993. The
Company added an estimated 9.1 net MMcfe of proved developed reserves as a result of this drilling, well in
excess of its 4.3 net MMcfe of production. In fiscal 1993, the Company for the first time produced more
natural gas than equivalent oil.

The following table sets forth certain operating data of the Company for the periods presented:

OPERATING DATA
Year Ended June 30,
1991 1992 1993

Net Production Data:

L e 7 3T e R vy & LA toti 163 374 276

GRSt o T pet ey e o 646 1,252 2,677

Gas equivalent MMcfe) ................ 1 LGl A 1,624 . 3,496 4,333
Oil and Gas Sales (§ in 000's): WitE ' .

@ | S s S e R A e T B s o L $3,284 $ 8,170 $ 5576

GHARTaR S R b e LG 95 o 1,050 2,350 6,026

Totatioil and gas salés .. i Lo il i : 4,334 10,520 11,602
. Average Sales Price: * B L

DR AT ) e R e = S $20.15 $ 2185 $ 20.20

GAS D BICRY . 11l it i B e o o 1.59 1.88 2.25
0Oil and Ga.g Costs ($ per Mcfe): :

Production expenses and taxes ., ............ o | -8 47 3 - 57 $ 60

General and administrative, net . . . . .. Tt el e Rl B30 o1 98 . .90

Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . ... . .. 98 83 e
Net Wells Drilled: _ ' Sl

Horizontal wells .. ..., .5W00 00t s LU R R 7.7 113 3.0

b Lo B R re o 1 L, DA el e o). 7.5 3.7 4.4
Net Wells at End of Period ... .. .. s g IR 15.2 29.4 . 1331




Since inception, the Company has built its reserve base primarily by drilling new wells. Frequently, such
new wells have been drilled under farmout or joint development agreements covering multiple potential
locations. Once proven, this drilling has allowed the Company to add significant proved, but undeveloped
- reserves. The full development of its proved undeveloped reserves will require capital expenditures by the
Company estimated to be approximately $86 million.

Since ‘February 1993, the Company has acquired approximately 30,000 gross (17,000 net) acres of
leasehold in the Navasota River area. The Company believes this area may develop into a significant new -
producing asset, allowing the Company to expand its horizontal drilling activities. In June 1993, the Company
entered into a participation agreement with.Belco for the joint development of the Navasota River area.
Subsequcnt to June 30, 1993, the Company began evaluation of the horizontal exploitation potential of the
Sho-Vel-Tum field located in southern Oklahoma, and has entered into preliminary joint development
agreements with Texaco and Mobil. The Company anticipates drilling two test wells within the next few
months for evaluation purposes. The Navasota River and Sho-Vel-Tum projects reflect management's plans to
increase the Company’s level of cxploratory drilling and employ its horizontal dnllmg expcmse in less proven
areas. i

Change in Accounting Metbod During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1993, the Company changed its
method of accounting for its investment in oil and gas properties from the successful efforts method to the
full cost method. The change in accounting method was based on a combination of business judgment and.
planning, improved comparability with similarly positioned independent oil and gas companies and provided
an enhanced basis for measurement of the Company's performance. Management believes that the full cost
method is preferable, and reflects the Company’s evolving business plans which include a reduced emphasis
on leasehold sales activities and- certain service operations provided to third parties. In addition, the change
more appropriately reflects the economic effects of the exploration for and development of the Company’s
extensive undeveloped leasehold position and its increased emphasis on drilling activities in less proven or
unproven areas, such as in the Navasota River area and the Sho-Vel-Tum Field. Further, management believes .
that the full cost method is thé predominant method of accounting used by comparable independent oil and
gas companieés. '

The full cost method assumes that all costs, including direct general and administrative expenses,
incurred to acquire and find oil and gas contribute to future revenues because even unsuccessful wells -
provide information about finding oil and gas. As a result, the financial statements are more representative of
the total cost of finding reserves. The costs capitalized are amortized over time as the proved reserves are
produced. Production costs are expensed as incurred. Auxiliary oil and gas operations, such as the promotion
and sale of leasehold, sales of oil and gas producing properties and oil and gas equipment, management fees,
overhead fees and other similar activities are generally accounted for as reductions in the carrying value of
the oil and gas properties.-Unamortized costs as reduced by related deferred taxes are subject to a ceiling
which limits such amounts to the estimated present value of oil and gas reserves, reduced by operatmg
expenses, future developmcnt costs and income taxes. -

Had the Company continued reporting under the successful efforts method of accounting, it would have -
reported a loss for fiscal 1993 of approximately $3.4 million, or $1.00 per weighted average common share
outstanding. The following unaudited financial information reflects on a quarterly basis for fiscal 1993 the
Company's results of operations after giving effect to its changc to the full cost method of accounting:



~ RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Quarter Ended

September 30, December31, March 31, June 30,
1992 1992 1993. - 1993

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues: : .
Ollisndigas salest s & L Fn e e b $2,681 $3,216 $3,250 $2,455
Qil and gas service operations . ... ... Ty 1,100 I 1 EORERRR i - & [ 1,796
Intetestandiatherai % L5 o LI Sons Iohe o1 . 24 64 206 586

TORLIewenies . . 7 . vp s ine Sl iy d et 3805- .-} 4393 4973 4.837
Costs and expenses: ( .
Production expenses and taxes .. ... B i s 699 714 656 521
Oil and gas service operitions . . . . .. et s 737 754 . 1,043 1,119
* Depreciation, depletion and amortization e . ’
of oil and gas properties .. ................ 1,139 944 1,088 1,013
Depreciation and amortization of other assets . . . 126 150 226 159 46
General and administrative; net .........,.... 660 1,062 1,012 .- 1,186 -
Provision for legal and other scnlemcnts ....... - =l 4 - %1286
Interest and other. .. ......... e IR L7580 793 e _. 582 149
Total costs and expenses . ................ 4,119 = . 4,493 4,540 5,320

Income (loss) before income taxes ......... TAR . (314) C100)5=- : 433 (483)

Income tax expense (benefit) ................. s (89) ; 31 135 (115)

NEL IR OO (AOBE) 5T e s bt et e s et 38 4 (8 225) $__69) $ 298 ($ 368)

Dividends on preferred stock. ; «vus ov v it s - $§ 50 § 166 § 169

Net income (loss) per common share .. ......... & 07 $§ .04 $§ 03 ' ($..11)

Weighted average common shares outstariding . . . . 2,808. 2,808 4,473 5,108

Results of Operations

General. For the fiscal year ended June 30; 1993, the Company realized a net loss of 3365 000, or $.20
per common share, on total revenues of $18.0 million. This compares with net income of $1.4 million, or $.45
per share, on total revenues of $18.7 million in fiscal 1992 and net income of $462,000, or $.15 per share,
on total revenues of $6.4 million in fiscal 1991. The loss in fiscal 1993 was largely a result of a $1.3 million
charge for legal expense and provision for litigation settlements. The higher earnings in fiscal 1992 as
compared: to fiscal 1991 reflect the Company's growth during the last half of fiscal 1992.

01l and Gas Sales. During fiscal 1993, oil and gas sales increased approximately 10,3% to $11 6 million
versus $10.5 million for fiscal 1992 and 168% from the fiscal 1991 amount of $4.3 million. Likewise,
* production volumes increased to 4,333 MMcfe in fiscal 1993, a 24% increase over fiscal 1992's production
. of 3,496 MMcfe and a 167% increase Over fiscal 1991’s. -production of 1,624 MMcfe. The increases in
production volumes reflect the Company’s ongoing development and exploitation of its undeveloped oil and
gas properties. The change in the mix between oil and gas production, as a percentage of total production |
during the three year period, reflects declines in fiscal 1993 in oil production through normal depletion from
. the Company's wells in the First Shot and Pearsall fields in Texas and significant additional gas production
- from the Company’s wells in the Giddings, Golden Trend, East Iola, and N.W. Arapaho fields. The average gas
price received for fiscal year. 1993 was $2.25 per Mcf, approximately 19.7% greatér than the $1.88 received
during fiscal 1992 and 42% greater than the $1.59 per Mcf received during fiscal 1991. Gas prices have
continued to be subject to volatile swings over the three-year period; however, the continued improvement
in the average price received for natural gas produced by the Company appears to be the result of favorable
shifts in' the demand/supply fundamentals for natural gas. Oil production sold by the Company during fiscal
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1993 yielded an average price 6f $20.20 per barrel representing a decrease of $1.65, or 7.5%, from the
average fiscal 1992 per barrel price. The average per barrel price received in fiscal 1991 of $20.15
approximated the fiscal 1993 average price, although oil pnces declmed significantly in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 1993. '

.0t/ and Gas Service Operations. Revenues from oil and gas service 0pérations toralled $5.5 million in
fiscal 1993, a decrease of $2.2 million, or 28%, from the $7.7 million reported in fiscal 1992 and a $3.6
~million, or 282%, increase over the fiscal 1991 amount of $2.0 million. The related costs and expenses of
these operations totalled $3.7 million, $4.1 million and $606,000 for the three years ended June 30, 1993,
1992 and 1991, respectively. Gross profit from oil and gas service operations was 34% in fiscal 1993, which
compares to 46% in fiscal 1992 and 69% in fiscal 1991. The gross profit derived from these operations is a
function of drilling activity in the period, the related costs of materials and supplies utilized in the service
operations performed and the related mix of operations performed within a period which impacts the average
gross profit for all services provided. During fiscal 1992, the Company participated in a gréater number of
wells providing more third party contractual services which resulted in a higher' level of service operations

revenues and related costs and expenses than in fiscal 1993 or 1991. 3

As a result of the adoption of the full cost method of accounting, oil and gas service operations revenues
and related costs and expenses for fiscal 1992 and 1991 as reflected in the financial statements included in
this report decreased over those amounts previously reported under the successful efforts method of
accounting. The differences in' the amounts result primarily from differences inherent in the two accounting
methods, and to a lesser extent from reclassifications. The full cost method requires the allocation of
contractual service revenue to.a reduction in the cost of the Company'’s oil and gas properties which reduces
the service revenue included in current earnings. No such requirement exists under the successful efforts
method. Further, as management shifts to a more vertically integrated exploration and production operation,
many of the service opérations, performed by subsidiaries of the Company are now considered to be direct
support of the Company's exploration and development activities rather than a separate profit center. As a
result, the gross profit from certain of these contractual services are treated as reductions in the Company'’s
investment in oil and gas properties while certain costs and expenses are reflected as general and
administrative expenses under the full cost method of account:ng

Interest and Other. Interest and other income for fiscal 1993 was SBSO 000 which compares to $542,000
for fiscal 1992 and $148,000 for fiscal 1991, respectively. Changes in this account result from varying factors
mcludmg changes in interest rates, average cash balances and other far.:tors ;

Production- Expenses and Taxes. Production expenses and taxes, which include lifting- costs and
production and excise taxes, increased to $2.6 million in fiscal 1993 as compared to $2.0 million in fiscal
1992 and $760,000 in fiscal 1991. The upward trend is attributed to the combination of higher oil and gas
production, combined with an overall increase in the average number of wells in which the Company
maintains a working interest. On an Mcfe basis, production expenses and taxes increased to $.60 per unit
produced in 1993, as compared to $.57 per unit produced in 1992 and $:47 per unit produced in fiscal 1991.
The Company anticipates that operating costs in fiscal 1994 will remain fairly consistent with the prior year,
absent a significant change in the composition of its property base.

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization. Depreciation, depletion and amortization (“DD&A™) of oil
and gas properties for fiscal 1993 was $4.2 million, $1.3 million higher than fiscal 1992’s level of $2.9 million,
and $2.6 million higher than fiscal 1991's amount of $1.6 million. The average DD&A rate per MMcfe, which
rate is a function of capitalized costs and related underlying reserves in the periods presented, was $.97, $.83,
and $.98 in fiscal 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. Subject to the results of future dcquisition, drilling and
production activities, comparable DD&A rates are anticipated to be in effect for fiscal 1994. The upward trend
in oil and gas DD&A expense primarily reflects the increased production levels which have occurred ratably
over the three year period. Other depreciation and amortization totalled $557,000, $974,000 and $351,000
in fiscal 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. The high amount in fiscal 1992 reflects nonrecurring charges.
Depreciation of other assets is primarily related to the Company’s service operations assets, and is expected
to increase in fiscal 1994 with the addition of equipment in fiscal 1993.
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General and Administrative, Net. General and administrative costs, which exclude amounts capitalized
as direct 0il and gas acquisition, exploration and development costs, totalled $3.9 million, $3.4 million and
$2.1 million in fiscal 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively, reflecting a 15% increase in 1993 as compared to
- 1992 and a 185% increase in relation to amounts incurred. in fiscal 1991. The upward trend in general and
admiinistrative costs during the three-year period is primarily attributed to personnel additions and related
costs of operations necessitated by the growth of the Company during the period. Further, the increase in
fiscal 1993 is partially attributed to non-capitalized travel, legal, accounting and engineering costs incurred
in preparation for the Company’s initial public offering of its Common Stock. The Company anticipates that
general and administrative costs in fiscal 1994 will remain fairly consistent with the prior year, absent a
significant change in the operations of the Company. As a result of the adoption of the full cost method of
accounting, general and administrative costs for fiscal 1992 and 1991 as reflected in the financial statements
included in this repoft increased over those amounts previously reported under the successful efforts method
of accounting. The incremental increase in general and administrative expenses results pnmanly from
_ differences inherent in the two accounting methods, the more significant of which are the treatment of
“administrative overhead reimbursements and the ‘treatment of direct general and administrative expenses
associated with property acquisition, exploration and development activities. Additionally, some expenses
previously allocated to and reported as service operations costs and expenses haye. been reclassified as
general and administrative costs.

Provision Jfor Legal and Other Sett/emem.r During the fourth quarter of 1993, the Company recorded

~a charge of $1.3 million for legal and other settlements. This amount includes provisions for the settlement

of three class action suits filed in the third quarter of fiscal 1993, related expenses, and other matters. No

provision has been made for the Plotner Litigation as the Company has been indemnified by Messrs..
McClendon and Ward against any liability for the judgment rendered therein and expenses for the appeal.

Interest and Orher. Interest cost to the Company is a funct16n of outstanding indebtedness and the
average interest rate on that indebtedness, Interest and other costs totalled $2.3 million in fiscal 1993 which
compared to $2.6 million in fiscal 1992. Fiscal 1993 interest costs decreased from the fiscal 1992 amount
primarily. as a result of the capitalization of approximately $192,000 and changes in the Company's capital
structure. Otherwise, interest costs were fairly constant between the two years. The fiscal 1991 interest and
other balance of $317,000 reflects lower average outstanding levels -of indebtedness. Barring increases in
interest rates or higher levels of borrowing, the amount of interest mcurred in fiscal 1994-is anticipated to
decrease as outstandmg indebtedness is reduced.

. Income Tax Expense (Benefit). The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $99,000 on a pre-tax
loss of $464,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. This compares with an income tax provision in fiscal
1992 of $1.3 million on pre-tax income of $2.7 million and $243,000 of income tax accrued on $705,000 of .
pre-tax earnings in fiscal 1991. The unusually high relationship of tax burden to financial pre-tax income in
fiscal. 1992 results from partnership losses incurred by Chesapeake Exploration Company prior to the
formation. of the Company which are included in ﬁnancral income but for which no tax benefit is available
to the Company.

- Liquidity and Capital Resources

financing Activities. The Company's initial public offering in February’1993 provided the Company with
net proceeds of $25.2 million which were used to reduce indebtedness to TCW and other lenders, including
reduction of accounts payable, and to provide working capital for the continued deveIOpmem of the
Company's proved undeveloped oil and gas assets. By mid-April 1993, the. Company had fully paid its
indebtedness to TCW using proceeds from the Company's new bank credit facility and proceeds from the
initial pubhc offering.

: In December 1992, the Company issued 576,923 shares of its 9% Convertible Prcferrcd Stock to TCW

in exchange for a $7.5 million reduction in the Company’s indebtedness to TCW. Previously, the Company
had issued warrants to TCW to purchase 312,001 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.17 per
share. TCW was also granted registration rights with respect to shares of the Companys Common Stock
~ issuable upon conversion of Preferred Stock and exercise of the warrants.
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In April 1993, the Company entered into a $15 million oil and gas reserve-based reducing revolving
credit facility with Union Bank. The facility's terms include interest at Union Bank's reference rate (6.0% at:
June 30, 1993) plus 1.5%, payable monthly, quarterly borrowing base reviews, commitment fees, covenants
restricting the Company’s ability to incur debt above certain limits without the bank's permission and other
provisions consistent with normal energy lending practices. The borrowing base, which at June 30, 1993 was
$10.2 million, reduces monthly by an amount determined at each redetermination of the borrowing base
(currently a $275,000 monthly reduction). The Company is required to make principal payments equal to the
amount by which the principal balance exceeds the borrowing base. The principal balance at June 30, 1993
was $10.2 million. The revolver note matures September 1, 1994, but may, in the discretion of the bank, be
extended by a period of one year. The Company has the option to convert the reévolver note on September -
1, 1994 to a term note with an amortization schedule acceptable to the Bank. The Union Bank loan is secured
by mortgages on substantially all of the Company's producing il and gzs properties, together with accounts
receivable, inventory, equlpmem and contract rights.

. Effecuve Decembcr 53 5, 1992 the Company entered into a loan agreement w:th Belco pursuant to which
Belco loaned $2.5 million to the Company. As part of this transaction, Belco received warrants to purchase
a maximum of 180,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price equal to $9.60 per share. Belco also
received certain registration rights for the shares issuable upon exercise of its warrants. The loan agreement
was amended in September'1993, effective as of June 30, 1993,

" The Belco loan bears interest at an annual rate of 9%, payable quarterly commencing January.1, 1993,
and requires quarterly principal payments commencing in April 1995 through January 1998. The Company
‘is required to make payments each time the Company commences-a well in the Golden Trend Field in an
amount equal to $50,000 times the Company's original working interest in such well. During the six months
ended June 30, 1993, the Company made principal payments to Belco of approximately $75,000 pursuant to
“this arrangement. As of December 31, 1994, $500,000 less the payments made during calendar 1994 is
payable on principal. The Belco loan is secured by guaranties of Messrs. McClendon and Ward. The Belco loan
agreement restricts the Company's ability to pay dividends other than preferred dividends and certain other -
contractual distributions and prohibits the Company from incurring additional long-term debt other than
indebtedness incurred to reduce outstanding debt or incurred on a nonrecourse basis and secured by newly
acquired assets. As a condition to other long-term borrowings, the Company is required to maintain a quick
ratio of 1-to-1; a'coverage ratio of 1.75-to-1 and a net worth ratio of 1-to-1. The Company must limit its annual
general and administrative expenses to no more than $5.0 million. In the event the Company raises additional
capital, the Company is.obligated to apply a portion of the net proceeds to reduce the Belco loan. At June 30,
*1993, the principal balance of the Belco loan was $2.4 million. :

In December 1992 and January 1993, the Company entered into credit agreements with certain of its .
vendors which provided for the vendors to supply materials, supplies and services in connection with the
Company’s proposed drilling projects. On a quarterly basis, the Company may submit to each vendor a' -
proposal for wells to be included in its drilling program for the ensuing quarter. If the vendor elects to
participate, the Company will pay 50% of such vendor's invoices for each well drilled within 90 days of .
receipt. The remaining 50% is payable from an assignment of -production from the wells included in the
quarterly drilling program. The assignment of production to each vendor is based on the unpaid amount of
the vendor’s invoices compared to the total cost of the wells being drilled. After the vendor has received an
amount equal to its unpaid invoice, plus interest at the prime rate of Chase' Manhattan Bank N.A. plus 1%, its
assignment of product:on is reduced by at least 80%. The vendor continues to receive this :cduced amount
until it has received up to two times its unpaid invoice. In some instances, the Company may be required to
pay all'unpaid amounts to suchvendor to the extent unpaid after three years. At_]une 30 1993, appmxlmately
$1.6 mllllon of credit was outstanding under these agreements.

At June 30, 1993, an additional $6.8 million was owed to other vendors and financing entities pursuant
to notes executed in fiscal 1992 and 1993. One such vendor noté¢ had a principal balance of $2.5 million at
June 30, 1993, accrues interest at 1% per annum, is collateralized by tubular goods and requires principal
payments within 60 days after shipment of tubular goods. Secured notes payable to various other entities to
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acquire oil service equipment had an aggregate balance of $2.1 million at June 30, 1993. Interest on these .
notes varies from 6.5% to 18.4% per annum and principal payments are due in monthly installments through
December 2000. Another of the Company’s vendor notes had a principal balance of $§2.1 million at June 30,
1993. The Company is in default on this note, and the vendor commenced legal action to collect the balance

of the note in April 1993. The note provided for interest at 10% per annum through October 1992 and 18%

‘per annum thereafter and monthly principal payments of $25,000 plus interest through June 1994; with the
balance due on July 1, 1994. The note is guaranteed by Messrs. McClendon and Ward. The Company and the
vendor have reached a preliminary agreement to modify the note as follows: (a) provide for monthly
payments of $100,000 plus interest, (b) change the date on which the interest rate will increase to 18% to
January 31, 1994, (c) change the date of maturity to October 1, 1994, and (d) provide for past due principal
and interest through September 1, 1993 plus $100,000 to be paid by the Company upon execution of the
modified note. The Company s consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 1993 reflects the expecred modlﬁcanon
of terms of this note. .

Worémg Capital Deficit. The Company had a workmg capnal deficit of $11.9 million at June 30, 1993
compared to a working capital deficit of $24.6 million at June 30, 1992. The reduction in the working capital
deficit is attributable to cash proceeds received by the Company in its initial public offering of Common
Stock. The working capital deficit at June 30, 1993, however, represented an increase of $4.3 million over the
Company’s working capital deficit of $7.6 million at March 31, 1993. This increase resulted from investments

~ made by the Company for long-term assets, primarily development of oil and gas wells, which were financed
by short-term debt, primarily accounts payable. On a successful efforts basis, the Company's working capital
deficit at March 31, 1993, was $1.4 million. The only difference between the two methods for such purpose
‘is that the full cost method does not pcrmu the Company to reflect non-producing leasehold to be resold as
a current asset, :

The Company's internally generated cash flow and existing capital resources should be sufficient to meet
its operating needs, fund existing capital commitments, and service its outstanding debt in fiscal 1994. These
resources will not be sufficient, however, to fund the level of capital spending required to develop the -
Company's proved undeveloped reserves. The Company has budgeted $29.8 million to fund drilling and
completion of 73 wells in fiscal 1994, $33.5 million in fiscal 1995 to fund 52 wells and an additional $22.6
million in fiscal 1996 to .fund 29 wells. These amounts do not include expenditures for drilling and
development of additional unproven locations. The Company is seeking additional capital to fund the
budgeted activity in the form of debt, equity or a combination thereof, but there can be no assurance that such
capital will be obtained, or if obtained, the terms that may apply. If the Company is unsuccessful in its capital
raising efforts, the number of wells drilled will be less than budgeted. As a result, production, future net -

revenues and the present value of those future net revenues will be less than projected in the Williamson -

report. The discretionary nature of a significant portion of the Company's capital spending permits the
Company to make adjustments to its budget based upon the availability of internally gencrzted cash and
external capital resources. The Company anticipates maintaining a capital expenditure program sumﬂar o
fiscal 1993 for fiscal 1994 in the event additional capital is not obtained..

Cash Flows from Operating and Investing Activities. Cash used in operating activities was approxi-
mately $1.5 million in fiscal 1993 compared to cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 1992 of $9.3
million. This difference of $10.8 million is attributable primarily to reduction in net income of approximately
$1.8 million and utilization of cash to reduce accounts payable.

The increase in cash used in operating activities and the Compaﬂys significant workmg capntal deficit
negatively impacted the Company's expenditures for development of oil and gas properties during fiscal -
1993. In fiscal 1993, the Company expended $15.1 million in investing activities, a decrease of $9.7 from
fiscal 1992. As a result of this decrease in drilling activity, trade accounts receivable declined $401,000 from
June 30, 1992 to June 30, 1993, reflecting the decrease in amounts due from participating industry partners.
Approximately $4.0 million of the $6.2 million increase in revenues and royalties due others at June 30, 1993
was paid in July 1993. In August 1993, $1.2 million of the § 1.6 mnlhon of the Company s accounts reccwable
from related parties was paid. - :



Inflation and Changes in Prices

The Companys revenuc and the value of its oil and gas properties have bcen and will be affected by
changes in oil and gas prices. The Company's ability to obtain additional capital on attractive terms is also
substantially dependent on oil and gas prices. Oil and gas prices are subject to significant seasonal and other
fluctuations that are beyond the Company's ability to control or predict. Although certain of the Company’s
‘costs and expenses are affected by the level of inflation, inflation has not had a significant effect on the
Company's results of operations during the past three fiscal years. .

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Effective September 14, 11992, the Comﬁanys Board of Ditéctors engaged' Price Waierhbusc as the
Company's principal independent accountants to replace Arthur Andersen & Co. (“Andersen”), who had
~ resigned as the Company's independent accountants on June 18, 1992.

Andersen had been previous}y engaged by the Company to audit its financial statements from inception.
Prior to this time, the financial statements of the Company had not been audited and reported on. Andersen
did not complete its audit of the financial statements for any period during the term of its engagement or issue’
any audit reports. During.the period of Andersen’s engagement, there was no disagreement between the
.Company and Andersen on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or
auditing scope or procedures, which, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Andersen would have caused
Andersen to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its report. Andersen
has indicated that, in addition, there was a difference of opinion between Andersen and the Company as to
whether the Company would be able to continue to operate as a going concern con51denng its capuallzauon'
and ﬁnancml resources at the time.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS‘

To.the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Chesapeake Energy Corporation A
In our opinion; the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries (the .
“Company") at June 30, 1993 and 1992, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended June 30, 1993, in conformity with generally accepted accounting'
principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsi-
bility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan
and perform the audits to obrtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and -
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
“made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
its investment in oil and gas properties in fiscal 1993.

PRICE WATERHOUSE

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
September 24, 1993
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

A'S SRTS

June 30,
1993 1992
5 in J'Z?Oﬂ.rdﬂ{_f!)
" CURRENT ASSETS: - . _ ¢
Cash and cash equivalents . . .. ........0. ... PIAADCY SO o U e A $ 4,851 § 690
Accounts receivable: 3
Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 3584 000 and $405; 000 9,987 10,388 -
L T S e e R oL ey 1,580 =
L L TE g O e e e L R S R N o 3,404 1.740
EOther I p s i = oty Mo e e ol WIS 0 g e S FINC Y RS 548 300
O A RN A B L S i e A o o S L ey s e e b sots 20,370 13.118
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: 4
Oil and gas properties, at cost based on full cost accounung ;
Evaluated o VBT B TR s e 4 o S S e AN o L SRS e TS A 56,181 45,729
Unevaluated properties and leaseholds . .. ... ..........oniinionnnnns 2,411 T e
_ Less — accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization . ............. ._(8,276) (4.091)
% s : 50,316 41,638
Service properties, equipment, and other ...... .. B eiinarssiecs sl arat s T 9,152 ° - 6,857
Less — accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization . ... .. S AT (2,141) (1.326)
ae _ _ ' a8 3RY 47,269
OTHER ASSETS . ....... R e T L WOt S U ey e e 149 - 296
TOTAUASSEES 720 5 s s e R R S S B $77.846 $60,683
LTFABILILELTILES AND STOCKHOLDERS LB TATY
CURRENT LI.A.BIUTIES ; )

" Notes payable and current maturities of long term) e Ll S ik SR i s ; $ 7,812 $ 7,987
Accounts payable . .. .. Wiy L U EOR W S R b TG o 9,663 20,143
Prepayments and other .. .. .............. e g A TR e aeate 2,158 3,150

- Revenues and royalties due others . ... ... S B SR T S A T : 12,403 6,242
Jsome pioves papblE . 5 L L U S e s s R e Jie 225 225

RO LA CURREN L AR R B L e ey ) i I s 32,261 37,747
LONG-TERM DEBT ......... Rk TR 0 Tl e S ) e SRAL et ey 13,190 21,742
DEFE_RRED_ INCOMESTAXES 5 b i G e i S o el i R s s ety 963 1,062
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Note 4)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: :

Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 1,153,846 shares

authorized; 576,923 and 0 shares issued and outstanding _

at June 30, 1993, and June 30; 1992, respectively................ vl 6 -
Common stock, $.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares :

authorized; 5,108,000 and 2,808,000 shares issued and -

outstanding at June 30, 1993 and June 30, 1992,

T 1 DR R R et e sk e S NS AL R o) e QRO gk 51 .28
0T T o e e S S S SRR e G SR RS L 32,704 683
Accumulated-deficle .. . on 2w e i n R T b e e i L L, (1,329) (579)
TOTAL STOCKHO[,DERS EQUITY ............... L i ; 31,432 . 132

TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY' .\ . \:vviiinnbvise s s $77,846 ] _860.683

The accompanying notes are an fntegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION A_ND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended ]uné 30,

(¥ in thausands, except per share data)

1993 1992 1991
REVENUES: \
Oiland gassales .........:... AT i A kb 5 o 7 §10,520 84,334
Oil and gas service operations . ... ............... e tne 5,526 : 7,656 f 1,961
Intggest andather: i 0 e SRS e Db < B8O 542 L5148
Wokal FEVRONER . 0 A e e s e _ 18,008 18,718 6,443
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Production expenses and taxes .. ......, ... 7. ... 2,590 2,003 760
Oil and gas service operations. . ... ... R e 3,653 4,113 606
Oil & gas depreciation, depletion and amortization ........ ' 4,184 - 2910 1,585
Depreciation and amortization of other assets. . . .......... o 887 974 351
General and administrative, net . . ........: T el ' 3,920 . 3414 2,119
Provision for legal and other settlements . ............... 1,286 —_ =
Ssinttrestandiothions mirr Sl i I L e o e (p e 2,282 T ST 317
TolCOSEand CXPORELS G i - oAl s e s e 18,472 15991 5, 5738
- INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES. ... ... T SR (464) 2,727 705
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) ............ e Tereraiay S 99) 1,337 . 243
NET INCOME (ROSS)Y. . 3ot s sivtn s oo By ¥ O L ) ($__ 365) $ 1390 § 462
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE COMPUTATION: :
NET INCOME (LOSS) .......... UL ET Sl XA [ il ot (¢ 365) § 1390 $ 462
DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK ............ LA A 385 ' £ =
NET INCOME (LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON . . .. .. el e s 750) . $ 1,390 > § 462
NET.INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE .. . ... ..... (S 20 s 45 (U s 1,
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON | _ : gt
SHARES OUTSTANDING : . . . /.. 000 v dvie o Sens ondie s 3,728 « = 101 3,101

The accompanying notes.are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,

1993 1992 1991
' : _ (¥ in thousands) -
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 2 5
NE N R R S O T e o i T 2 e 2 (8 365) § 1,390 $ 462
ADJUSTMENTS TO. RECONCILE NET INCOME (LOSS) TO NET k
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: .
Depreciation, depletion and amortization. . ... .............. 4,741 © . 3,884 1936
Drefetreditaioes tog i it e e e ke | T e “ (99 1,192 163
AmortiZation o loan-@osts:, «o-l AT M A e e s s 127 . - —
CHANGES IN CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: : ; :
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable — trade . ... .. T 401 . (840) (6.785)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable — related parties . . . (1,580) 2,503 (3:213).
(Increase) decreas€ ininventory . ... ................ ... $s : 834 1,088 (2.757)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets ................ ' 247 (156) 317) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, prepayments '

il 2T A R L B L R e Bl (11,472) (1,959) 22381
Increase in'revenues and royzlt:cs AUeCthers' J v conts Do BT 2071 2,871
Increase in income tax payable. . . ........ ., . .00 0. - 145 TS0

Cash provided by (used in) opcratlng activities . .. ....... s (1,499) 9318 14,821

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: / ]

‘Development and acquisition of oil and gas properties . ., ... .. (16,382) - (27.879): 22,677)
Proceeds from sale of equipment, leasehold and other......... 3,535 . 4,364 2,777
Other property and equipment additions . ... ............... (2,295) (1,240) (2.028) .

Cash used in investing activities . ........... b UL, £l R ; _(15,142) (24.755) (21,928)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: . _ :
Proceeds from issuance of common stock.. ... .............. : 25,168 - -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings . . . ................... -19,762 16,543 11,337
Payments on long-term borrowings . .. ..:........ TN (e [P (23,487) (3,7749) (753)
Other finaneing: -7 5o vl BT (el e Ei e (641) — a
Contributed capital . . .. .... ... e e e S bt - ot 378
Capital svithdrawals. <. o 0 e niis s s s R ] i — - (1.715)

Cash provided by financing activities . .... .. e Y S s 20,802 12,779 9,247

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. .. ;. ... .. 4,161 (2,658) 2,140

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period. . i .. .nu Rl 690 3348 .. 1208

Cash and cash cquwalents end of period. . ....... A s e $ 4851 $ 690 § 3348

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSU'RE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

CASH PAYMENTS FOR: ;

Hetest expense =) SN = Do LS i A A A $ 2520 $ 2,166 s 291
Income taxes ....... e o e S e A e . G e ARy | 56 8 - $ -

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

During the year cnded_}une 30, 1992, accounts receivable in the amount of $1,049,000 were settled by an acceptance
of an assignment of a working interest owner's working interest in specified wells, as defined. The balance of the trade

recewah!e due from the industry partner was reclassified to oil and gas properties.

Durmg the year ended June 30, 1992, the company executed note agreemcnts with scw:ral vendors to formalize

payment terms on approximately $3,700,000 of accounts payable.

During the year ended June 30, 1993, notes payable in the amount of 57.500,000_ were converted to preferred stock., :

On June 30, 1993, the Company became the legal and beneficial owner of certain oil and gas equipment. The total
purchase price to be paid for the equipment is $§2,498 490. The purchase price will be paid by the Company during

fiscal 1994,

The accompar ‘fng rotes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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_ PREFERRED STOCK

Balance, beginning of period

CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
' CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Issuance of 576,923 shares of preferred stock .. ............:

Balance, end of period

COMMON STOCK

Balance, beginning of period
Issuance of 2,808,000 shares of common stock

Issuance of 2,300,000 shares of common stock .. ... ... AT

Balance, end of period

PAID-IN CAPITAL

Balance, beginning of period
Issuance of preferred stock

Issuance of comm
Offering expenses

DR OCK: = i T o F i s e i ] s RS 0 e etk

and other

Balance, end of period . . ... Ry T S ire ke et
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Balance, beginning of period -
Capital contribution '
Issuance of common stock

ACCUMULATED IDEFICIT

Balance, beginning of period

Net income: (loss)

. Preferred dividends
Capital withdrawals

Years Endeci June 30,

1993

w
o |

(-~}

A

b

579)
(365)
(385)

(1329)
$31432

1992
(¥ in thousands)

“
|

2

@

28

68

Y]

683

410 |
301
11

|I|j
e
[
<

(1,969)
1,390

579

:

The accornpanying notes are dn WW ' part of these tonsolidated financial statermenis.
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w
|

62
. 348

By

462

(1,715)

(1,969)
(81,559)




CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to _Cnnsolidated Financial Statements

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘Chesapeake. Energy Corporation (the "Company”), a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in
December 1991 for the purpose of combining (the “Combination™) certain of the oil and gas exploration, oil
and gas production and oil field service operations previously conducted by Chesapeake Operating, Inc. -
("COI"), Chesapeake Exploration Company (“CEX"), Lindsay Oil Field Supply, Inc. and subsidiaries of those
entities, (collectively referred to as the “Combined Entities"), along with certain office buildings, interests in
oil and gas properties and related debt associated with these assets, all of which were beneficially owned by
Aubrey K: McClendon and Tom L. Ward. The Combination was effective January 1, 1992 and the Company
succeeded to all of the exploration and developmem operations and oil and gas assets of the Combined
Entities. In addition, on May 1, 1991, interests in certain oil and gas properties owned by Chesapeake
Investments (“CI"), which is wholly owned by Mr. McClendon and his family, and TLW Investments, Inc.
(“TLW™), which is wholly owned by Mr. ' Ward, were transferred (the “Transfer™) to CEX. CEX assumed
certain liabilities related to such properties. The excess of historical net cost over the CI and TLW current
“payables relating to the assets transferred to CEX was recorded as a contribution from owners in the
accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity.

The Combination and Transfer were recorded on the basis of a reorganization of entities under common
control at historical cost, in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements give retroactive effect to the Combination and Transfer to reflect the historical results of
operations of the assets that were acquired and liabilities assumed by the Company. The net.income from the
interest in oil and gas properties prior to the Transfer is reflected in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations with the offset reflected as capital withdrawals in the accompanying consolidated
statements of stockholders' equity. ; :

Principles of Consolidmwn The accompanymg consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Combined Entities as described above. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers investments in
all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with ongmal maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. :

Inventory. Inventory consists primarily of tubular goods and other lease and well equipment which the
‘Company plans to utilize in its ongoing exploration and development acnwnes and is carried at the lower of
cost or market, on the specific identification method. i

Property and Equipment. The Company follows the full cost method of accounting (see Note 2).under
‘which all costs, including direct general and administrative expenses associated with property acquisition,
exploration and development activities are capitalized and amortized on a composite unit-of-production
method based on proved oil and gas reserves. The Company’s oil and gas reserves are estimated annually by
independent petroleum engineers. The average composite rates used for depreciation, depletion and
amortization were $0.97, $0.83 and $0.98 per equivalent Mcf in 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively. Proceeds
from the sale of properties are accounted for as reductions to capitalized costs unless such sales involve a
significant change in the relationship between costs and the value of proved reserves or the underlying value
of unproved properties in which case a gain or loss is recognized. Unamortized costs as reduced by related
deferred taxes are subject to a ceiling which limits such amounts to the estimated present value of oil and gas
reserves, reduced by operating expenses, future development costs and income taxes. The costs.of unproved
properties are excluded from amortization until the properties are evaluated. ;
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Property and Equipment. Other property and equipment primarily consists of vehicles, oil and
gas servicing equipment, office buildings, and office equipment. Major renewals and betterments are
" capitalized while the costs of repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. The costs of assets
retired or otherwise disposed of and the applicable accumulated depreciation are removed form the accounts,
and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations. Other property and equipment costs are depreciated
on both straight-line and accelerated methods over the esnmatcd useful lwes of the assets, which range from
3 to 30 years.

Capitalized Interest. Dunng 1993 interest of approximately $192,000 was capuahzcd dunng pcnods
of dnlhng completing and construction of facilities.

Service Operations. Certain-su‘bsidiaries of the Company perform contractual services on wells the
Company operates as well as for third parties. Oil and gas service operations revenues and costs and expenses
‘reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations include amounts derived from certain
of the contractual services provided. The Company's economic interest in its oil and gas properties is not
affected by the performance of these contractual services and all intercompany profits have been eliminated.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Company operateé exclusively in the oil-and gas industry. The
Company’s joint interest billings and oil and gas sales receivables represent substantially all of the balance
included in trade accounts receivable in the accompanying balance sheets.

Income Taxes. Except for CEX, the Combined Entities were C Corporations which filed separate
income tax returns prior to the Combination. CEX is a‘partncrship and, accordingly, its taxable income or loss
for periods prior to the Combination was allocated to its individual partners and reported in their income tax
returns. Subsequent to the Combination, the Company has filed a consolidated federal income tax return.

The Company has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 109, "Accounting
for Income Taxes™ and has stated its deferred income tax assets and liabilities under the provisions of this
accounting standard for all periods presented. :

Net Income Per Share. Primary earnings per share for all periods has been computed based upon the
weighted average number of shares outstanding after giving retroactive effect to the 1.8 for 1 stock split, the
2,808,000 common shares lssuccl in the Combination, the 2,300,000 common shares issued in the initial
public offering, the common ‘stock equivalents arising from the ‘exercise of the warrants issued to the Trust
Company of the West (“TCW™) on July 2, 1992, the common stock eqmvalents arising from the exercise of
the warrants issued to Belco Oil & Gas Corp. (“Belco’™) and the common stock equivalents arising from the
exercise of the employee stock options grantéd in January 1993. Computations of primary and fully diluted
earnings per share have not given effect to common stock equivalents or other contingent issuances for any
period in which their inclusion would have the effect of mcreasmg the earnings per share amount or
decreasing the-loss per share amount otherwise computed

Gas Imbalances. The Company follows the “sales method” of accounting for its oil and gas revenue
whereby the Company recognizes sales revenue on all oil or gas sold to its purchasers, regardless of whether
the sales are proportionate to the Company's ownership in the property. A receivable or liability is recognized
only to the extent that the Company has an imbalance on a specific. property greater than the expected
remaining life of the reservoir. The Company’s net 1mbalance positions at June 30, 1993 and 1992 were not
material.
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING CHANGE

During the fourth quarter of 1993, the Company changed its method of accounting for its investment in
oil and gas properties from the successful efforts to full cost method. This change was made concurrent with
. -planned changes in the Company's oil and gas operations descnbed below and was pred;cated on a
combination of business judgment and such planning.

Management is of the opinion that the full cost method of accounting is preferable and more
~ appropriately reflects changes in the Company’s evolving business plans including a reduced emphasis on
leasehold sale activities, equipment sales and certain service operations provided to third parties, as well as
more appropriately reflecting the economic effects of the exploration for and development of the Company's
‘extensive undeveloped leasehold investment through increased emphasis on exploratory drilling activities.
Further, management believes that the full cost method is the predominant method used by comparable
independent oil and gas compames and will improve comparability of financial information with snmllarly
positioned independent oil and gas compames :

The financial statements presented- herein have given effect to the retroactive restatement of all pnor
periods as a result of this change in accounting method. The primary differences between the two accounting
methods, as they relate to the-Company, include the accounting for sales of oil and gas properties and oil and
gas equipment, overhead and consulting fees, certain other services provided by the Company's subsidiaries
and certain general and administrative expenses which are treated as adjustments to the carrying value of oil
and gas properties under full cost and are recognized currently. in the statement of operations under
successful efforts. Additionally, the computation of depreciation, depletion and amortization of oil and gas
properties is based on a composite unit-of-production method for full cost and a lease-by-lease umt—of
production method for successful efforts. If the Company had not changed from successful efforts to full cost,
net income (loss) would have been ($3,360,000), 1,839,000, and $952,000 for each of the years ended June
- 30, 1993, 1992, and 1991, respectively. Total revenues would have been $25,614,000, $22,894,000, and
$13,764,000, and total costs and expenses would have been $29,853,000, $20,025,000, and $12,312,000 for
each of the years ended June 30, 1993, 1992, and 1991, respectively. Earnings (loss) per common shire under
successful efforts would have been ($1.00), $.59, and $.31, for each of the years cndcd June 30, 1993, 1992,
and 1991, rCSpectwe!y .

3. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes 'pa}-zble and long-term debt consist of the following: .

June 30,

1993~ . 1992
_ . 1 (¥ ins thousands)
Term note payable to Union Bank, interest of 7.5% per annum, collateralized . .
by producing oil and gas properties, payable in monthly installments through -
sy ot ol 6 SRR R Tl S BT e N e TG N S R - $10,211 §—
Note payable to Belco Oil & Gas Corp,, interest at 9% per annum..
collateralizéd by non-producing leasehold, interest is due in quarterly :
installments from April 1993 through January 1998, quarterly installments of ]
principal are due from April 1995 thrbugh January 1998 . ........ AT et 2,407 _ -
Note payable to a veni:ior-. interest.at 1% per annum, collateralized by'bil and - ;
‘gas tubulars, payments are due G0 days from shipment of the wbulars . .. .. .. . 2498 -
Note payablé to a bank, Iint:restl at 7.75% per annum, collateralized by office ' 5+
buildings, payments due in monthly installments through May 1998 ... ... iall T 1=
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 CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June ‘30;
1993 1992

Notes payable to vendors participating in the vendor financing programs,

interest at- 7% per annum, collateralized.by interests in certain producing oil

and gas properties, payable in monthly instaliments based on the production { :
from certain oil and gas properties, as defined .......... MY TR S S i 1.620 —

Term poté payable to Trust Company of the West (“TCW™), interest at 9%
per annum plus a royalty interest in each of the wells drilled, collateralized by . :
producing oil and gas properties, payable in monthly installments. .. ........ - 6,750

Drilling note payable to TCW, interest at 9% per annum plus a royalty interest
in ‘each of the wells drilled, collateralized by oil and gas properties. drilled )
under a Credit Agrecment, payablc in monthly installments. . . . . A P oy e - 13,025

Notes payable to various entities to acqmre non-producing leasehold, interest
" varies from 10% to 18% per annum, col.laterahzcd by non- producmg leasehold :
orunsecured:. . povinlie e v e s A S e s S 1,777

Note payable to a vendor for oilfield equipment, annual interest zt’ 10%
through January 1994, and 18% thereafter, payments due in monthly . :
installments of principal plus interest.. . . ............ ... .. ivu., e SZ084 - 23840

Notes payable to various entities to acquire oil service equipment, interest
varies from 6.5% to 18.4% per annum, collateralized by equipment, payments
due in monthly installments through December 2000 . .. ... B O e : 2,082 - 2,138

Notes payable to a bank for office buﬂdings interest at 8. 5% per annum,
collateralized by office buildings, payments due in month_ly installments .
through March 31, 1993 ... .. e wiateins e A 8 P e R i S - 158

Notes payable'to various vendors to refinance trade accounts payable, interest :
varies from 0% to 12% per annum, payments due through July 1994 ........ £ 116 3,794

‘Other....... o e e WA mil e Yol ad ern A Q. L9 ' 68 115

Less loan origination costs, net of AMOFTZAtION «. . . . . ..\ o ' vor s s e eiins (861) . . «(412)

Toral notes payable and long-term debt .................. e L e 002 29,729
Less — Current maturities- .. 1. ... .lieecnnss o vnis P AT e KTV TR ; (7.812) (7.987)

-Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current maturities ... ... ... I : . $13,190 $21,742.

Thc aggregate scheduled maturities of notes payable and long-term debt for the next five fiscal ycars Y
endmg June 30, 1998 and thereafter were as follows (m thousands of dollars):

ey TS e o e S L R L e e "8 7,812
1995 .. 5 ..., o e Lk Sy Utald 9,743
3 YL T S i O, RO et 2o Wt LB T W Tl TR ' 2,559
| [ 52 A AT RS b oo J A b o e S e el 67
08 - v, o e b o s S ' 62
T e e e e P Sy y 759

$21,002
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In April 1993 the Company entered into a $15,000,000 oil and gas reserve-based reducing revolving
credit facility with Union Bank. This loan is secured by the Company's interest in various producing oil and '
gas properties and requires the Company to make monthly payments of $275,000 plus interest. Interest is
calculated at the lender's base rate plus 1.1/2% per annum' (7.5% at June 30, 1993). Terms of the credit
facility include quarterly borrowing base reviews, commitment fees, maturity at September 1, 1994,
covenants limiting the Company's-ability to incur debt and restricting dividends, . without the bank’s
‘ permission, and other provisions consistent with normal energy lending practices. The outstandmg pnncxpal
balance of the credit- facﬂ:ty at June 30, 1993 was $10.2 million.

Eﬂ‘ccuvc December 31, 1992 the Company entered into a loan agreement with Belco Oil & Gas Corp.
(“Belco") pursuant to which Belco loaned $2.5 million to the Company. The terms of the agreement include
restrictions on future indebtedness, limitations on ‘the Company'’s right to pay dividends or redeem capital
stock, and restrictions on the amount of general and administrative expenses that the Company may incur. As
part of this transaction, Belco received warrants. to purchase up to 180,000 shares of Common Stock at an
exercise price equal to $9.60 per share (see note 9). At June 30 1993, the unpmd principal balance of thc
- loan was $2.4 million.

' . OnSeptember 24, 1993 the Company and Belco entered-into the First Amendment to Loan Agreement
("First Amendment”) which modified the mandatory payment terms of the original loan agreement, added
.mandatory prepayment terms on the loan in the event the Company makes any sale of equity securities or
debt convertible into equity securities, and amended certain of its covenants including the ceiling on general
and administrative expenses the Company may incur. The amendment to the mandatory prepayment
provisions is effective as of January 1, 1994. All of the remaining provisions in the First Amendment are
effcn:twe June 30, 1993. '

Atjune 50 1993 the Company was in default under a promlssoqr noté with a vendor dated July 13, 1992 ;
with a June 30, 1993 balance of $2.08 million. In April 1993, the vendor commenced legal action to collect .
the balance of the note. The Company-and. vendor ‘have reached a preliminary agreement to modify the
promissory note to restructure the terms as follows: (a) increase monthly payments from $25,000 to
.$100,000 plus interest, (b) change the date on which the interest rate will increase to 18% from November
1992 10 January 1994, (c) change the date of maturity to October 1, 1994, and (d) provide for past due
principal and interest through September 1, 1993 plus $100,000 to be paid by the Company at closing. The
accompanying consolidated balance sheets reflect the modiﬁcauon of terms of this promissory note as of June
30, 1993. T

The Company has agreements with certain of its vendors under which the vendors have agreed to extend
long-term credit for supplies, materials and services provided by such vendors to the Company in connection
with current and future drilling projects. At June 30, 1993 approximately $1.6 million of credit was
outstanding under these agreements.

4. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company is currently involved in certain litigation and has recorded a provision at June 30, 1993
for legal expenses and litigation settlements aggregating $1,286,000. While it is not possible to determine the
ultimate disposition of these matters, management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that
the final resolution of all currently pending or threatened litigation is not likely to have a material adverse
effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company when considering the
aforemenuoned provision. .
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CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In February 1993, a $2.15 million (plus costs and interest) judgment was entered against the Company
and its two principal shareholders. The Company and the other defendants have appealed the judgment. The
two principal shareholders have indemnified the Company against any liability with respect to the judgment
and the appeal.

The Company, together with certain of its executive officers, its directors and others, are defendants in
three class action suits based upon alleged misstatements in the Comipany’s February 1993 prospectus used
in connection with the initial public offering of its common stock. A Memorandum of Understanding has been
‘executed by the parties, fully settling the claims against the defendants subject to approval by the court of a
definitive settlement agreement. The settlement, if approved by the court, would require a $485,000 payment
_ by the Company and indemnification of the Company by its two principal shareholders for any liability
resulting from the judgment described in the preceding paragraph and for post-judgment fees and expenses
_incurred by the Company As of June 30, 1993, the Company has prowded a reserve for its estn‘nated cost of ~
sct(lement

The Company's subsidiary, COI, is a defendant in a pending action seeking apbroximately $15 million in
damages for alleged failure to drill wells under a farmout agreement entered into in 1991. COI asserts as a
defense that it had the option, but not the obligation, to drill the wells and that, in any event, it was excused
from drilling because of a lease cancellation action instituted by the plaintiffs lessor covering a substantial
portion of the lands covered by the farmout agreement. :

A subsidiary of the Company, COI, sold fractional undw:ded workmg interests in many of the wells it has
drilled to oil and gas companies and individual investors. Offers and sales of such interests are generally
subject to the registration and anti-fraud provisions of federal and state securities laws. None of the offers and
sales of working interests made by COI were registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws.

 Various individuals and.corporations who purchased fractional undivided working interests in specific oil
and gas properties from COI and purchasers of interests from COI have asserted claims against the Company.
As of September 24, 1993 there were no suits pending against the Company for securities violations arising -
out of such sales, although there can be no assurance that claims will not be asserted in the future.

The Company has employment contracts with its _two principal shareholders and its chief financial officer
which provide for annual base salaries, bonus compensation and various benefits. The contracts provide for
the continuation of salary and benefits for the respective terms of the agreements in the event of termination
of employment withqut cause. One agreement expires Fcbruary 28, 1995, and the others t:xplre June 30,
1995. -

Due to the nature of the oil and gas. business the Company and its subsidiaries are expOsed to possible
environmental risks. The Company has implemented various policies and procedures to avord environmental
contamination and risks from environmental contamination. The Company is not aware of any potcmlal
envrronrnental issues or claims.

5. INCOME _TAXES

~ As discussed in Note 1, the Company has adopted SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes". The
components of the income tax provision for each of the periods are as follows (in thousand of dollars);

Years Ended June 30,

1993 1992 1991

£ J - (5 in thousands)
CURIETE: (3o e s N o S £ = $ 145 : $ 80
Beforced 0. Soilter ST hnbe SRt N e aETe Ea iy (99 . 1,192 _163
AR G B S AT O T 2L hag SN (5 99) $1337 8243




CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
_Nmes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The effective income tax rate differed from the computed ‘expected” federal income tax rate on earnings
before income taxes for the following reasons: ;

Years Ended June 30,

1993 _1992. 1991

. ' (¥ in thousands) ;

Computed “expected” income tax provision (benefit) . . . ($158) $ 927 $240
Partnership operations prior to the Combination . . . ., .. — «299 =
Other . . . . . L A S R S BT AR 59 111 0B
: $ 99 $1.337 $243

Deferred income taxes are provided to reflect temporary differences in the basis of net assets for income
tax and financial reporting purposes. The tax effected temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which
comprise deferred taxes are as follows

Years Ended June 30,
1993 1992 S 1991
"\ (¥ in thousands) i

Accelerated depreciation, depletion and

amortization of intangible drilling COSES . . oo L (86,295) (82,449 (8 153).
Taocloss careyforswands . 1 s e e e e o 5332 1,387 =
Total Noncurrent .. ................. IS (3963  ($1.062) (8$163)

At June 30, 1993 the Company had an operating loss carryforward of approximately $15.7 million for
income tax purposes, available to offset future income taxes payable to the extent regular income taxes
payable exceeds alternative minimum taxes payable. These loss carryforward amounts will expnre dunng
2007 and 2008:

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors, shareholders and employees of the Company have acquired working interests in
certain of the Company's oil and gas properties. The owners of such working interests are required to pay
their proportionate share of all costs. As of June 30, 1993, 1992 and 1991 the Company had accounts
receivable from these directors, shareholders, and employees of $1,580,000, $0, and $4,710,000. The
aggregate average receivable balance due from these parties for fiscal 1993, 1992, and 1991 approximated .
$1,153,000, $3,779,000, and $4,795,000, respectively.

A director serves as general counsel to the Company. During Fiscal 1993, 1992, and 1991, the Company
incurred legal expenses of $723,000, $507,000, and $132,000, respectively, for legal services provided by the
law firm of which the director is'a member.

The Company has aséigncd carried interests in oil and gas properties to certain of its employees and .
consultants. During fiscal 1992, the Company ceased assigning such interests. ,

Effective July 1, 1990, CI and TLW were engaged as consultants to the Company at a monthly fee of
$8,333 to each of CI and TLW, through June 30, 1991 and $10,000 each month thereafter. The Company
recorded $200,000 and $240,000 as general and administrative expense in the accompanying statements of
operations during fiscal 1991 and 1992, respectively, related to these consulting arrangements. In the June
30, 1992 consolidated balance sheet, the Company recorded a total of $160,000 payable to CI and TLW
related to their consulting services. The consulting engagement terminated on July 1, 1992.

Beginning in }ariuary 1990, the Company leased two of its office buildings from CI and TLW at aggregate
monthly rentals ranging from $2,000 to $20,000. During fiscal 1991 and 1992, the company recorded

*
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$57,300 and $120,000, respectively, as general and administrative expense in the accompanying statements
of operations related.to these leases. These monthly charges ceased effective December 31. 1991, at which’
time CI and TLW transferred the buildings and certain furniture and fixtures to the Company;, as part of the
Combination for a total consideration of approximately $1,290,000 which included assumption of certain
indebtedness as well as the assumption of two notes payable to a bank, which were collateralized by the
buildings. The balance of these notes payable of $§158,000 was recorded in notes payable and current
maturities of long-term debrt in the accompanymg balance sheet at June 30, 1992. As of June 30, 1993, the
notes had been fully paid.

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective October 1, 1989, the company established a 401(K) profit sharing plan (the “401(K) Plan").

" Eligible employees may make voluntary contributions to the 401 (K) Plan which are matched by the Company

up to 2.5% of the employees' salary. The amount of employee contributions is limited -as specified in the

401(K) Plan. The Company may, at its discretion, make additional contributions to the 401(K) Plan. The

Company contributed $44,000, $17,000 and $6,000 to the 401(K) Plan dunng the fiscal years ended June 30,
1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively.

8. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Sales to individual customers consutuung 10% or more of total revenue were as follows:

Percent
Year " ; : Amount Revenue
; - = (5 in thousands)
1993 Plains Marketing and Transportation, Inc. 2,579 22% -
GPM Gas Corpomtlon 2039 18%
Mobil Oil Corporation : 1975 15%
Total Petroleum, Inc. . ' . 1,380 12%
. Texaco Exploration & Production, Inc: 1,368 ' C12%
1992 Plains Marketing and Transportation, Inc. E957 1w 47%
1991 Plains Marketing and Transportation, Inc. - 1,264 - 16%

Management.believes that the loss of any of the above customers would not have a material impact on
the Company'’s results of operations or its financial position.

9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY .

In February 1993, the company completed an initial public offering of 2,300,000 shares of its"Common
Stock at $12 per share. The total offering proceeds were $27.6 million with total net proceeds of the offering
approximating $25.2 million, of which $12.8 million was used to reduce indebtedness, and the balance was
used to fund operations and as working capital. : :

On December 4; 1992 the Company issued to TCW 576,923 shares of its Convertible Preferred Stock,
in exchange for.-a $7,500,000 reduction in the Company’s debt to TCW. Each share of the Convertible
Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $13.00, accumulates dividends at an annual rate of $1.17 per
" share cumulative from Decémber 4, 1992 (to be paid quarterly commencing December 31, 1993) and is
convertible at any time into a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the liquidation preference plus.
accumulated dividends of such share of Convertible Preferred Stock surrendered for conversion divided by
a conversion price of $9.60. Commencing December 31, 1993, accumulated dividends in arrears, if any, will
accumulate additional dividends at a raté of 9% per annum. Should the Company fail to pay accumulated
dividends on the Convertible Preferred Stock for a period of six consecutive calendar quarters, the holders
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. of the Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to elect one director to the Company's Board of Directors..
Such right terminates, and such members are dismissed, when all accumulated and unpaid dividends on the
Convertible Preferred Stock are subsequently paid. Pro forma per share data assuming full conversion of the
Convertible Preferred Stock to common shares is not provided herein as the results are antidilutive.

- In connection wuh the July 2, 1992 amendment to the 'I‘CW' Credit Agreement, the Company issued to
TCW a stock warrant granting TCW the right to purchase up.to 312,001 shares of Common Stock at a price
of $4.17 per share. The term of the warrant Explr:s in Aprl! 1996. The warrant provides for full price and
antidilution protection.

The Company, the principal stockholders of the Company and TCW entered into a stockholders’
agreement providing for various first rights of refusal and other provisions relating to the capital structure of

* the Company. The Company and TCW also entered into an agreement requiring the Company to register the
- Common Stock issued TCW pursuant to the warrants and the conversion of the Convertible Preferred Stock.

: As discussed in Note 1, as part of the Combination, certain office buildings, interests in producing and

nonproducing oil and gas properties, other property and related debt were contributed to the Company
- effective January 1, 1992. These contributions had no effect on consolidated stockholders’ equity since the

property contributed was recorded at historical costs totaling approximately $2,528,000 in exchange for

* $2,207,000 of existing accounts receivable from CI and TLW and assumption of $321,000 in long-term debt.

Such transaction is not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

' The Transfer was consummated as a series of contributions to the Company and its subsidiaries. As a
- result, the Transfer was a taxable transaction to Messrs. McClendon and Ward to the extent the Company
assumed liabilities in excess of Messrs. McClendon and Ward's bases in the assets transferred to the Company.
The tax bases of assets acquired were adjusted to equal the liabilities assumed which resulted in a reduction
of deferred income tax liabilities and an increase in contributions from owners of $291,000 as reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity. i

As part of the loan transaction with Belco (see Note 3), Belco received warrants to purchase a maximum
of 180,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $9.60 per share. Belco also received certain
' registration rights for the shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants.

In January 1993, the Company granted options to acquire an aggregate 226,800 shares of Common Stock
at an exercise price of $9.60 per share. The options granted were pursuant to two stock option plans, the
Chesapeake Energy Corporation 1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan (“ISO™) and the Chesapeake Energy
Corporation 1992 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (“NQO"). The ISO plan is for employees of the Company
and the NQO plan is for consultants and directors of the Company. In February 1993, the Company granted
options to acquire an additional 59,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of 512 per share to-
directors of the Company.

A 1.8-for-1 stock split of the common stock durmg 1993 has been given retroac:we effect in thcse
financial statements. i
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10. DISCLOSURES ABOUT OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES -

Net Capitalized Costs. Evaluated and unevaluated capitalized costs related to the Company’s oil and gas
producing activities are summarized as follows:

] June 30,
1993 1992 1991
(¥ in thousands)

Qil and gas properties: . '
RO e e e L T e B eV e $56,181 $45,729 $19,982
Unproved ....... et Tk S SO MR S 2,411 L - ~

Fotak T Al ok o1 e o WD ) SR g $58,592 $45729 - $19,982
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion : ;

AN AOETORRION? . & i E g e 3 e e - (8,276) (4,091) (1,130)
Net capitalized costs . . ............... R e $50,316 $41,638 £18.852

Unproved properties not subject to amortization at June 30, 1993, consist mainly of lease acquisition
costs. All of the balance in unevaluated properties at June 30, 1993, represents costs added during that fiscal
year. The Company capitalized approximately $192,000 of interest related to the average balance in wells in
progress during fiscal 1993. There was no interest capitalized during fiscal 1992 and 1991, respectively. The
Company will continue to evaluate its unevaluated properties; however, the timing of the ultimate evaluation
and disposition-of the properties has not been determined. ;

Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Producing Activities. Costs mcurred in oil and gas property
acquisition, exploration and devclopment activities, whether capitalized or expensed, are summarized as
follows

June 30,
1993 1992 1991
' ! (¥ in thousands)
PrOperty acquiSition: €0SES: &/, i % - viiid = sisa yine y oy $ 2340 $ 2233 § 8455
EXDIOTALION: CORIS S 5o i et g b s s e 1,123 724 482
DERIOPEIENE COBES . 17 oL o5/ eis by s Wga o ke & . 9384 26,553 . 12,281

Fatall s et S s G BT ST e s 20 e $12,847 $29,510 $21,218

Results of Operations from Oil and Gas Producing Activities (unaudited). The Company's results
of operations from oil and gas producing activities are presented below for the years ended June 30, 1993,
1992 and 1991, respectively. The following table includes revenues and expenses associated directly with the
Company's oil and gas producing activities. It does not include any allocation of the Company’s interest €osts -
or general corporate overhead and, therefore, is not necessarily indicative of the contribution to consolidated
net operating results of the Company’s oil and gas operations.

June 30,
1993 . 1992 1991
f - (5 in thousands)

Oil and gas sales .......... R A s ARt A M e S $11,602 810520 $ 4334
Production Costs () i ol o i il fiela e e (2,590) (2,003) (760)
Depletion and depreciation ... ... P IR (4,184) €2,910) (1,585)
Imputed income tax provision (b) . ... ..., ... (1,641) (1,906) (676)
Results of operations from oil and g gas 1%

PrOJUCIng ACtiVALIES & L0 il s et e e e : $ 3,187 § 3701 $ 1313

(a) Production costs include lease operating expenses and production: taxes

~(b) The imputed income tax provision is hypothetical and determined without regard to the Company’s deduction for general and
administrative expenses, interest costs and other income-tax credits and deductions.
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0il and Gas Reserve Quantities (Unaudited). The Reserve Informanon presented below is based -
upon reports prepared by the independent petroleum engineering firm of Lee Keeling & Associates, Inc. as
of June 30, 1991 and by Williamson Petroleum Consultants, Inc. (“Williamson' ") as of October 1, 1992
* (adjusted to June 30, 1992 by the Company) and June 30, 1993. The information is presented in accordance
with regulations prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company emphasizes that
reserve estimates are inherently imprecise. The Company's reserve estimates were generally based upon
extrapolation of historical production trends, analogy to similar properties and volumetric calculations.

Accordingly, these estimates are expected to. change, and such changes could be matcnal as future =
information becomes available. N -

Proved oil and gas reserves represent the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural gas
liquids which geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in
future years from knawn reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Proved developed oil

and gas reserves are those expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equlpment and
operating methods.

Presented. bclow is 2 summary of changes in estimated reserves of the Company adjusted to June 30, :
1992 by the Company based upon the report prepared by Williamson as of October 1, 1992.

June 30, 1993 . June 30, 1992 June 30, 1991

oil  Gas oil . Gas oil Gas
. (mbbl) ° (mmch (mbbl) (mmcf) (mbbl) . (mmcf)
Proved reserves, beginning of year . ... ... .. .. ©11,147 - 68,618 3212 17334 969 5,052
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . . . . 1,576 15,078 10,140 60,745 2,418 12,872
Revisions of previous estimate . ............. (2,793) (118) (1,843) (8,222) (12) 56
Production: s s s i G R s (276) (2,677 (374 (1,252) (163) (646)
Sale of reserves-in-place. .. .. ... e el (32) (1,142) - - — —
Purchase of undeveloped reserves-in-place . . . . . - 4 12 13:=:; - -
Proved reserves, end of year . ... ............ 9,622 - 79,763 11,147 68,618 = 3212 17,334
Proved developed reserves, end of year .. ... .. 830 11,893 1,049 11,492 1054 7,244

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows (Unaudited). SFAS No. 69 prescribes
guidelines for computing a standardized measure of future net cash flows and changes therein relating to
estimated proved reserves. The Company has followed these guidelines which are briefly discussed below:.

Furure cash inflows and future production and development costs are determined by applying year-end
prices and costs to the estimated quantities of oil and gas to be produced. Estimated future income taxes are
computed using current statutory income tax rates including consideration for the current tax basis of the
properties and related carryforwards, giving effect to permanent differences and tax credits. The resulting
future net cash ﬂows are reduced to present value amounts by applying a 10% annual discount factor.

The assumptions used to compute the standardized measure are those prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board and, as such, do not necessarily reflect the Company's expectations of actual
revenue to be derived from those reserves nor their present worth. The limitations inherent in the reserve
quantity estimation process, as discussed previously, are equally applicable to the standardized measure
computations since these estimates are thc basis for the valuation process .
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The following summary sets forth the Companvs future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas
reserves ba.sed on the standardized nmeasure prescribed in SFAS No 69:

‘Years Ended June 30.

1993 . 1992 1991
. : 7 (% in thousands) 5
Future cash inflows . .......... s Mty SRAR T 374,190 $396,709 $ 82,170
Future production costs . ....... AT B el A - (72,691) . (58.403) (20,414)
Future development costs . .......:.oiiananns s (86,383) (71,087). (17.414)
Future income tax provision . .. .......... e Bt (37.248) . (63.668) (8.226) -
Future net cash flows ... ........0 ... AR Giisy 177.868 203551 - 36116
Less €ffect of a2 10% discoynt factor .. ... ... LIRS Fo (58,124) (77.799) (14.062) -
- Standardized measure of discounted : - : :
_futu_re net cash ﬂows Y e T A S, (A _ $119,744 1257752 - 3 2_2.054

The pnnmpal sources of changc in the standardized measure of dlSCOLlnth future net eash flows are:

Years Ended June 30,

1993 £, 1997 1991
i : : : (¥ in thousands)
Standardized measure, beginning of year . ... ... ... .. =5 (3125752 $ 22,054 $ 4,694
Sales-of oil and gas produced, net of production costs ... (9,012) (8,388) (3,549)
. Net changes in prices and production costs ........... (25,935) 8,394 1,844
Extensions and discoveries, net of producnon : y
- and development costs ... .:........ ST By - 21,579 151,296 .16,849
. Changes in future development costs . ...... ... RS T © (4,159 875 941
Development costs incurred during the pcnod ] :
that reduced future development costs . ............ : 7,233 11,115 4,435
Revisions of previous quantity CSUmates  ar e 2 E (22,775) (23,760) e )
Purchase of undeveloped resesrves-in-place ........ 22100 =3 : 103 ' L
Sales of reserves-in-place . ... ... o1 v s Wt ¢ T (428) = "l
Accretion of discount .. ............ AT P T AR w0 16453 2,781 616
Net:change in Income taxes . .. i s S s ilnan d 16,856 (33,019) 4.277)
‘Changes in production rates and other .. ........,. o (5.822) . (5,699 o o815
Standardized measure, end of year .. ... e = et $119,744 $125,752 - $22,054
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